
Monday, May 9, 2022 AGENDA Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL HEALTH, LIFE ENRICHMENT, EQUITY & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, May 9, 2022 
10:00 AM 

Committee Members: 
Councilmembers Rashi Kesarwani, Ben Bartlett, and Sophie Hahn 

Alternate: Councilmember Terry Taplin 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this 
meeting of the City Council Health, Life Enrichment, Equity & Community Committee will be 
conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  The COVID-19 state 
of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person 
and presents imminent risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location 
will be available.   

To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or 
Android device: Use URL -  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84985607109 . If you do not wish for 
your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to 
rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the 
screen. 

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID: 
849 8560 7109. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, 
press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Health, Life Enrichment, Equity, & 
Community Committee by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed 
to the members of the Committee in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official 
record.   

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84985607109


Monday, May 9, 2022 AGENDA Page 2 

AGENDA 

Roll Call 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters 

Minutes for Approval
Draft minutes for the Committee's consideration and approval. 

1. Minutes - February 14, 2022

Committee Action Items
The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. The Chair 
will determine the number of persons interested in speaking on each item. Up to ten (10) speakers may 
speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Chair may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. 

Following review and discussion of the items listed below, the Committee may continue an item to a future 
committee meeting, or refer the item to the City Council. 

2a.  Fair Workweek Ordinance; Adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.110 
From: Commission on Labor 
Referred: April 12, 2022 
Due: September 27, 2022 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of the proposed Fair Workweek Ordinance, 
adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.110.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Margot Ernst, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400 

2b.  Companion Report: Fair Workweek Ordinance; Adding Berkeley Municipal 
Code Chapter 13.110 
From: City Manager 
Referred: April 12, 2022 
Due: September 27, 2022 
Recommendation: Direct this item to the Health, Life Enrichment, Equity, and 
Community Policy Committee for the following: Review and evaluate the proposed 
policy; and Evaluate resources needed to conduct the necessary analysis of impacts 
and costs associated with implementing the proposed policy.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

Unscheduled Items
These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting.  The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 

• None

2



   

Monday, May 9, 2022 AGENDA Page 3 

Items for Future Agendas 
• Discussion of items to be added to future agendas 
• Discussion of future hearings and open forums 

Adjournment
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Written communications addressed to the Health, Life Enrichment, Equity & Community Committee and 
submitted to the City Clerk Department will be distributed to the Committee prior to the meeting. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. 
Members of the City Council who are not members of the standing committee may attend a standing 
committee meeting even if it results in a quorum being present, provided that the non-members only act 
as observers and do not participate in the meeting. If only one member of the Council who is not a 
member of the committee is present for the meeting, the member may participate in the meeting because 
less than a quorum of the full Council is present. Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  
Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. 

 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including 
auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 
(V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

I hereby certify that the agenda for this meeting of the Standing Committee of the Berkeley City Council 
was posted at the display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 
Martin Luther King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on May 5, 2022. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk 
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info. 

3

mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info


4



Monday, February 14, 2022 MINUTES Page 1

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL HEALTH, LIFE ENRICHMENT, EQUITY & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Monday, February 14, 2022
10:00 AM

Committee Members: 
Councilmembers Rashi Kesarwani, Ben Bartlett, and Sophie Hahn

Alternate: Councilmember Terry Taplin

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this 
meeting of the City Council Health, Life Enrichment, Equity & Community Committee will be 
conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  The COVID-19 state 
of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person 
and presents imminent risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location 
will be available.  

To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or 
Android device: Use URL - https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89780196624 If you do not wish for 
your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to 
rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the 
screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID: 
897 8019 6624. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, 
press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair. 

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Health, Life Enrichment, Equity, & 
Community Committee by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed 
to the members of the Committee in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official 
record.  

Page 1 of 3

5

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89780196624
arichardson
Typewritten Text
01



Monday, February 14, 2022 MINUTES Page 2

AGENDA

Roll Call: 10:08 a.m. All present. 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters – 0 speakers

Election of Chair

Action: M/S/C (Bartlett/Kesarwani) to elect Councilmember Sophie Hahn as 
Chair. 

           Vote: All Ayes. 

Minutes for Approval
Draft minutes for the Committee's consideration and approval.

1. Minutes - March 8, 2021

Action: M/S/C (Kesarwani/Bartlett) to approve the minutes of March 8, 2021.
           Vote: All Ayes. 

Committee Action Items
The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. The Chair 
will determine the number of persons interested in speaking on each item. Up to ten (10) speakers may 
speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Chair may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker.

Following review and discussion of the items listed below, the Committee may continue an item to a future 
committee meeting, or refer the item to the City Council.

 None

Unscheduled Items
These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting. The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 

2.    Presentation: Public Health Division’s Tobacco Prevention Program
   From: City Manager
   Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Item removed from agenda after consultation with Dr. Warhuus.

Items for Future Agendas
 Discussion of items to be added to future agendas
 Discussion of future hearings and open forums

Page 2 of 3

6



Monday, February 14, 2022 MINUTES Page 3

Adjournment
Action: M/S/C (Bartlett/Kesarwani) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: All Ayes

Adjourned at 10:19 a.m.

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct record of the Health, Life Enrichment, 
Equity & Community Committee meeting held on February 14, 2022. 

____________________________
  April Richardson, Assistant City Clerk

Communications
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk 
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info.

Page 3 of 3

7

mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info


8



 
Kate Harrison 
Vice Mayor, District 4 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704    Tel: 510.981.7140    TDD: 510.981.6903     
E-Mail: kharrison@CityofBerkeley.info 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 1 
 
 

 
Meeting Date:   April 12, 2022 
 
Item #:   40a.  
 
Item Description:   Fair Workweek Ordinance; Adding Berkeley Municipal Code 

Chapter 13.110  
  
Submitted by:  Vice Mayor Harrison  
 
Recommendation:  
1. Delay Council consideration of the Fair Workweek Ordinance to a date certain: the 

May 24, 2022 Council meeting, to provide HHCS staff with additional time to 
consider staffing needs with regard to enforcement.  

2. Submit to the June 2022 Budget Process of approximately $104,863 in General 
Funds with additional benefits to hire another Community Development Project 
Coordinator to assist with enforcement of this ordinance and other labor laws and 
regulations. 

 
Background:  
Vice Mayor Harrison originally submitted this ordinance to the Labor Commission in 
2018. Due Council consideration and enactment of this ordinance continues to be a 
top priority for workers within across the city, including within the City Departments.  
 
While the pandemic has been extremely challenging for businesses, workers have also 
suffered greatly. Indeed, the fight for worker rights has received renewed attention 
during the pandemic and following high profile unionization efforts at Starbucks and 
Amazon. It is in the public interest for the City of Berkeley to finish the work its started 
in 2018 and finally stand in solidarity with part-time workers whose schedules are 
precarious and uncertain. The proposed Fair Work Week Ordinance, modelled on 
ordinances in neighboring cities and those across the nation, would bring predictability 
and added compensation to part-time workers.  
 
Vice Mayor Harrison’s office respectfully disagrees that this ordinance should be 
referred to a Council Policy Committee for up to another 120 days. This ordinance was 
already duly considered by the Ad Hoc Subcommittee on Paid Family Leave and Fair 
Work Week in 2018. In addition, the Labor Commission considered the ordinance 

Page 1 of 20

9

arichardson
Typewritten Text
02a



closely for nearly four years and submitted its updated version of the ordinance for 
Council action.  
 
In consulting with the Deputy City Manager and the Director of the Health, Housing & 
Community Services Department, it is prudent to delay consideration of the ordinance 
for one month to the May 24, 2022 Council meeting to provide staff with additional time 
to consider enforcement and staffing needs to effectively implement the ordinance. 
This compromise avoids further and unnecessary delays and provides workers and the 
community with timely consideration and possible action.  
 
This supplemental also includes an initial budget referral to hire an additional 
Community Development Project Coordinator to assist with enforcement of this 
ordinance and other labor laws and regulations. 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 20

10



Commission on Labor

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

ACTION CALENDAR
April 12, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Commission on Labor

Submitted by: Michael Berne, Chairperson, Commission on Labor

Subject: Fair Workweek Ordinance; Adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.110 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt first reading of the proposed Fair Workweek Ordinance, adding Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 13.110.  

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
This ordinance provides for both private enforcement and enforcement by the 
City.  Comparable jurisdictions report a small number of complaints annually, but 
additional staffing may be required to investigate complaints and hold enforcement 
hearings.  Temporary staffing and one-time mailing costs will be required to conduct 
outreach to covered employers.  The Commission anticipates that these cost 
projections will be quantified in a companion staff report.  

SUMMARY
Key features of the proposed ordinance include:

Scheduling Notification and Requests
● Schedules must be given 14 days in advance
● Employees must be provided with an initial estimate of hours
● Employees have the right to decline hours they are given with less than 14 days 

notice
● Employees shall have the right to request flexible and predictable schedules to 

accommodate childcare, education, second jobs etc.
● Employees have the right to decline any shift that either occurs less than 11 

hours after the end of their previous shift; if accepting such a shift, will be 
compensated at 1½ times their regular rate of pay.

Predictability Pay
● Employees will receive predictability pay equal to a specified number of hours at 

their hourly rate of pay as compensation for schedule changes, ranging from 1 
hour of pay for a shift scheduled less than 14 days in advance but at least 24 

Page 3 of 20

11

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


Fair Workweek Ordinance

Page 2

hours up to 4 hours of pay or hours equal to the amount of hours lost when a 
shift is canceled or reduced

Offer of Work to Existing Employees
● Before hiring new employees, employers must offer additional hours to existing 

part-time employees for any new hours available
● Employees shall have 24 hours to accept additional hours

Applicability
● In general, employers in Berkeley with 50 or more employees globally engaged 

in the following industry sectors: building services, healthcare, hotel, 
manufacturing, retail, or warehouse services;

● Restaurant employers with at least 100 employees globally and 10 or more in 
Berkeley; 

● Franchisees associated with a network of franchises employing 100 or more 
employees globally and 10 or more; and 

● The City of Berkeley as an employer.
● Specifically excluded are nonprofit organizations with fewer than 100 employees 

globally (which includes most arts organizations). 

BACKGROUND
The City Council referred to the Commission on Labor in 2018 to draft an Ordinance to 
establish regulations governing the scheduling and hiring practices of qualifying 
businesses in Berkeley.  

The City Council’s referral observed that: 

Even with sick pay and strong minimum wage laws, workers in Berkeley, particularly 
shift workers, still face unfair and exploitative work practices. Since the passage of the 
Affordable Care Act, a frequent issue that has arisen is the practice of businesses 
keeping their employees below 30 hours a week to avoid having to provide them health 
care. Workers may be forced to take “clopening” shifts, where an employee covers the 
closing shift one day and the opening shift the next day, giving them little time for rest. 
Shift workers frequently have shifts added or removed hours before they are set to 
begin, making scheduling impossible and creating financial difficulties for those with 
children who need child care.

At the time of the City Council’s referral, multiple jurisdictions had introduced or enacted 
measures to address these inequitable conditions, including the Cities of Emeryville, 
San Jose, San Francisco, and New York, and the State of Oregon, with the strongest at 
the time being the City of Emeryville.  The referral directed the ordinance to be based 
on the City of Emeryville, strengthened with the following principles:

Page 4 of 20

12



Fair Workweek Ordinance

Page 3

● The right to refuse “clopening” shifts, the right to request a flexible work
arrangement, and a prohibition on refusing hours to prevent the application of 
benefits should apply to all employers and employees

● The right to at least two weeks notice of work schedule, to decline additional
hours, and to “predictability pay” if changes are made to the schedule after the 2 
two week deadline should apply to all businesses of at least 25 employees

● The requirement that new shifts first be offered to all qualified existing employees 
until they have at least 35 hours of work per week on average should apply to all 
Retail, Hotel, and Restaurant firms with at least 25 employees

● All requirements of the ordinance apply to the City of Berkeley and the Berkeley 
Rent Stabilization Board.

Since the referral, several of the above-mentioned jurisdictions passed the introduced 
ordinances, in addition to the City of Chicago.  Sectoral coverage in the proposed 
ordinance is generally modeled after Chicago, while firm size is generally modeled after 
Emeryville.  

After many deliberative meetings before the full Commission and a dedicated 
subcommittee, and considering input from stakeholders including affected employers 
and workers, the Commission developed a proposed ordinance taking into account the 
Council’s direction.  At its November 17, 2021 meeting, the Commission on Labor voted 
to appoint Commissioners Katz and Botello to draft the Fair Workweek Council report 
recommending adoption of the draft ordinance and to send to Council without further 
action from the commission.   (M/S/C: Katz/Osborne. Yes: Scantlebury, Harlow, Botello, 
Jones, Berne. Noes: None. Absent: Medak, Schriner.) By passing this ordinance, 
Berkeley has the opportunity to be at the forefront of worker protections and to support 
the essential workers that have gotten us through this pandemic. 

The Commission found many of the workers employed in the retail, restaurant, and 
hospitality industries suffer from low wages and unpredictable schedules, while needing 
to work multiple jobs just to get by. Volatile scheduling leads to difficulty in managing 
multiple jobs, school work, and childcare. Following the model adopted by the City of 
Chicago, the proposed ordinance would cover building services (including janitorial and 
security), healthcare, manufacturing, and warehouse services.  

In response to input received by stakeholders, the proposed ordinance applies only to 
employers employing fifty or more employees globally (similar to Emeryville), but for 
restaurants or franchises would apply if the employer employed at least ten employees 
in the City of Berkeley and at least one hundred globally.  This attempts to balance an 
interest in achieving the broadest coverage of any ordinance or law in the United States, 
while avoiding coverage of locally owned businesses that do not have the human 
resources support of a franchisor.  

Page 5 of 20

13



Fair Workweek Ordinance

Page 4

The strengthening elements requested by the City Council are mostly incorporated, 
except for the applicability thresholds based on our deliberative process, compliance 
with federal laws as applicable, the requirement for new shift offers reflects a fourty-hour 
workweek, and the Rent Stabilization Board employees are presumed incorporated 
within City of Berkeley employees.  

The City Council may wish to consider a delayed effectiveness date, such as until the 
beginning of the following calendar year, for private sector employers to allow for the 
time necessary for staff to provide outreach and education to affected businesses.   
While private sector employers should be provided a reasonable amount of time to set 
up systems to ensure compliance with the ordinance, the subcommittee recommends 
that the City of Berkeley as an employer can and should implement the new procedures 
promptly.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
None.

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)
This action is not expected to have any impact on the environment and is exempt from 
CEQA.  

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Enactment of workplace protections.  See background discussion.  

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The Commission recognizes the labor standards benefits of applying the right to refuse 
“clopening” shifts, and refusal of hours to prevent employees from attaining thirty hours 
per week to all employers, and applying the two week notice and predictability pay to all 
sectors of the economy.  The right to request a flexible working arrangement remains 
applicable to all employers that employ ten or more employees under the Berkeley 
Family Friendly and Environment Friendly Workplace Ordinance, adopted in 2017.  The 
proposed ordinance’s focus on uniform application to the seven sectors covered in 
Chicago’s model reflects (a) the expected education and outreach required for 
compliance, (b) the sectors where working conditions require intervention the most, and 
(c) that the employers covered by the proposed ordinance are in the best position to 
comply with its provisions in the near term, and does not preclude broadening coverage 
in the future.  

CITY MANAGER
See companion report.  

CONTACT PERSON
Margot Ernst, Commission Secretary, 510-981-5427

Page 6 of 20

14



Fair Workweek Ordinance

Page 5

Attachments: 
1: Ordinance

Exhibit A: Fair Workweek Ordinance

Page 7 of 20

15



ORDINANCE NO.       -N.S.

FAIR WORKWEEK EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS; ADDING BERKELEY MUNICIPAL 
CODE CHAPTER 13.110

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1.  That Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.110 is added to read as follows:

CHAPTER 13.110
FAIR WORKWEEK EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS
Sections:
13.110.010 Purpose and Intent
13.110.020 Definitions.
13.110.030 Applicability.
13.110.040 Waiver through Collective Bargaining
13.110.050 Advance Notice of Work Schedules.
13.110.060 Notice, Right to Decline, and Compensation for Schedule Changes.
13.110.070 Offer of Work to Existing Employees.
13.110.080 Right to Rest.
13.110.090 Right to Request a Flexible Working Arrangement.
13.110.100 Notice and Posting.
13.110.110 Implementation.
13.110.120 Enforcement.
13.110.130 Retaliation Prohibited
13.110.140 Retention of Records.
13.110.150 City Access.
13.110.160 No Preemption of Higher Standards.
13.110.170 Severability.

13.110.010 Purpose and Intent
This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the “Berkeley Fair Workweek 

Ordinance”. It is the purpose of this chapter and the policy of the City: (i) to enact and 
enforce fair and equitable employment scheduling practices in the City of Berkeley; (ii) 
to provide the working people of Berkeley with protections that ensure employer 
scheduling practices do not unreasonably prevent workers from attending to their 
families, health, education, and other obligations; and (iii) to require Employers needing 
additional hours, whether temporary or permanent, to first offer those hours to current 
part-time Employees.

Page 8 of 20

16



Page 2

13.110.020 Definitions
As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(a)    “Calendar week” shall mean a period of seven (7) consecutive days starting on 
Sunday.
(b)    “City” shall mean the City of Berkeley.
(c)    “Covered employer” shall mean an employer subject to the provisions of this 
chapter, as specified in Section 13.110.030. 
(d) "Department" shall mean the Department of Finance or other City department or 
agency as the City shall by resolution designate.
(e)    “Employee” shall mean any person who:

(1)    In a calendar week performs at least two (2) hours of work within the 
geographic boundaries of the City of Berkeley for an employer; 
(2)    Qualifies as an employee entitled to payment of a minimum wage from any 
employer under the California minimum wage law, as provided under Labor Code 
Section 1197 and wage orders published by the California Industrial Welfare 
Commission. Employees shall include learners, as defined by the California 
Industrial Welfare Commission; and
(3) Is (i) not exempt from payment of an overtime rate of compensation pursuant 
to Labor Code Section 510; and (ii) is not paid a monthly salary equivalent to at 
least forty hours per week at a rate of pay of twice the minimum wage required 
by Berkeley Municipal Code Section 13.99.040.  

(f)    “Employer” shall mean any person, including corporate officers or executives, as 
defined in Section 18 of the California Labor Code, who directly or indirectly through any 
other person, including through the services of a temporary employment agency, 
staffing agency, subcontractor or similar entity, employs or exercises control over the 
wages, hours or working conditions of any Employee, or any person receiving or holding 
a business license through Title 9 of the Berkeley Municipal Code.  
(g)    “Firm” shall mean a business organization or entity consisting of one (1) or more 
establishments under common ownership or control. In the case of a franchise, the 
franchisor shall be considered the firm.
(h)    “Franchise” shall have the meaning in California Business and Professions Code 
Section 20001.
(i)    “Franchisee” shall have the meaning in California Business and Professions Code 
Section 20002.
(j)    “Franchisor” shall have the meaning in California Business and Professions Code 
Section 20003.
(k)    “Good faith” shall mean a sincere intention to deal fairly with others.

Page 9 of 20

17

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=1197
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=18
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley09/Berkeley09.html#9
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=20001
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=20002
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=20003


Page 3

(l)    “Predictability pay” shall mean wages paid to an employee, calculated on an hourly 
basis at the employee’s regular rate of pay as that term is used in 29 U.S.C. Section 
207(e), as compensation for schedule changes made by a covered employer to an 
employee’s schedule pursuant to Section 13.110.060, in addition to any wages earned 
for work performed by that employee.
 (m)    “Shift” shall mean the consecutive hours an employer requires an employee to 
work including employer-approved meal periods and rest periods.
(n)    “Work schedule” shall mean all of an employee’s shifts, including specific start and 
end times for each shift, during a calendar week.
(o) “Building services” means the care and maintenance of property, including, but not 
limited to, janitorial services, building maintenance services, and security services. 
(p) “Healthcare” shall mean either a Hospital, Medical Practitioner Office, Nursing 
Home, or Supportive Housing as defined in BMC Section 23F.04.10, or a facility that 
provides outpatient maintenance dialysis.  
(q) “Hotel” shall mean Tourist Hotel as defined in BMC Section 23F.04.10.  
(r) “Manufacturing” shall mean a Manufacturing Use as defined in BMC Section 
23F.04.10.  
(s) “Restaurant” shall mean a Food Service Establishment as defined in BMC Section 
23F.04.10.  
(t) “Retail” shall mean a Retail Products Store as defined in BMC Section 23F.04.10.  
(u) “Warehouse services” shall mean Warehouse Based Non-Store Retail as defined in 
BMC Section 23F.04.10.  

13.110.030 Applicability
(a) All sections of this chapter shall apply to: the City of Berkeley as an employer, 

and all employers in the City of Berkeley who are primarily engaged in any of the 
following industries:

(1) building services;
(2) healthcare;
(3) hotel;
(4) manufacturing;
(5) restaurant;
(6) retail; or
(7) warehouse services.

(b) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), this chapter shall apply only to an employer that
(1) is not a restaurant and employs fifty (50) or more employees globally; 

Page 10 of 20

18

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/207


Page 4

(2) is a restaurant operator employing ten (10) or more employees in the city of 
Berkeley and employs one hundred (100) or more globally; or 

(3) is a franchisee employing ten (10) or more employees in the city of Berkeley 
and is associated with a network of franchises employing one hundred (100) 
or more employees globally.

(c) This chapter does not apply to a not-for-profit corporation organized under 
Section 501 of the United States Internal Revenue Code unless it employs one 
hundred (100) or more employees globally.  

(d) In determining the number of employees performing work for a covered employer 
during a given week, all employees performing work for the covered employer for 
compensation on a full-time, part-time, or temporary basis, at any location, shall be 
counted, including employees made available to work through the services of a 
temporary services or staffing agency or similar entity.

(e) For the purposes of determining whether a nonfranchisee entity is a covered 
employer as defined by this chapter, separate entities that form an integrated enterprise 
shall be considered a single employer under this chapter. Separate entities will be 
considered an integrated enterprise and a single employer under this chapter where a 
separate entity controls the operation of another entity. The factors to consider in 
making this assessment include, but are not limited to:
(1)    Degree of interrelation between the operations of multiple entities;
(2)    Degree to which the entities share common management;
(3)    Centralized control of labor relations; and
(4)    Degree of common ownership or financial control over the entities.
There shall be a presumption that separate legal entities, which may share some 
degree of interrelated operations and common management with one another, shall be 
considered separate employers for purposes of this chapter as long as (i) the separate 
legal entities operate substantially in separate physical locations from one another, and 
(ii) each separate legal entity has partially different ultimate ownership.

13.110.040 Waiver through Collective Bargaining
To the extent permitted by law, all or any portion of the applicable requirements of 
this chapter may be waived in a bona fide collective bargaining agreement; 
provided, that such waiver is explicitly set forth in such agreement in clear and 
unambiguous terms that the parties thereto intend to and do thereby waive all of or 
a specific portion(s) of this chapter.

Page 11 of 20

19



Page 5

13.110.050 Advance Notice of Work Schedules.

(a)    Initial Estimate of Minimum Hours.
(1)    Prior to or on commencement of employment, a covered employer shall 
provide each employee with a good faith estimate in writing of the employee’s 
work schedule.
(2)    Prior to or on commencement of employment, the employee may request 
that the covered employer modify the estimated work schedule provided under 
subsection (a)(1) of this section. The covered employer shall consider any such 
request, and in its sole discretion may accept or reject the request; provided, that 
the covered employer shall notify the employee of covered employer’s 
determination in writing prior to or on commencement of employment.

(b)    Two (2) Weeks’ Advance Notice of Work Schedule. A covered employer shall 
provide its employees with at least two (2) weeks’ notice of their work schedules by 
doing one (1) of the following: (1) posting the work schedule in a conspicuous place at 
the workplace that is readily accessible and visible to all employees; or (2) transmitting 
the work schedule by electronic means, so long as all employees are given access to 
the electronic schedule at the workplace. For new employees, a covered employer shall 
provide the new employee prior to or on their first day of employment with an initial work 
schedule. Thereafter, the covered employer shall include the new employee in an 
existing schedule with other employees. If the covered employer changes an 
employee’s work schedule after it is posted and/or transmitted, such changes shall be 
subject to the notice and compensation requirements set forth in this chapter. 
(c) An Employee who is a victim of domestic violence or sexual violence may request 
that the Employee's Work Schedule not be posted or transmitted to other employees. 
An oral or written request shall be sufficient and implemented immediately and is 
sufficient until the Employee gives written permission to post the Employee's schedule. 
An Employer may request a written statement from the Employee that states that the 
Employee is a victim of domestic violence or sexual violence. The written statement 
shall constitute the documentation needed for the Employer to implement the request. 
The Employer may not require a written statement more than once in a calendar year 
from any Covered Employee for this purpose.

 13.110.060 Notice, Right to Decline, and Compensation for Schedule Changes.

(a)    A covered employer shall provide an employee notice of any change to the 
employee’s posted or transmitted work schedule. The covered employer shall provide 
such notice by in-person conversation, telephone call, email, text message, or other 
electronic communication. If the Employee accepts the additional shift via a verbal 
conversation, the Employer shall immediately follow up with written confirmation to 
document the agreement and when it was accepted. This notice requirement shall not 

Page 12 of 20

20



Page 6

apply to any schedule changes the employee initiates, such as employee requested 
sick leave, time off, shift trades, or additional shifts.

(b)    Subject to the exceptions in subsection (d) of this section, an employee has the 
right to decline any previously unscheduled hours that the covered employer adds to the 
employee’s schedule, and for which the employee has been provided advance notice of 
less than fourteen (14) days.
(c)    Subject to the exceptions in subsection (d) of this section, a covered employer 
shall provide an employee with the following compensation per shift for each previously 
scheduled shift that the covered employer adds or subtracts hours, moves to another 
date or time, cancels, or each previously unscheduled shift that the covered employer 
adds to the employee’s schedule: (1) with less than fourteen (14) days’ notice, but 
twenty-four (24) hours or more notice to the employee: one (1) hour of predictability pay; 
(2) with less than twenty-four (24) hours to the employee, (i) four (4) hours or the 
number of hours in the employee’s scheduled shift, whichever is less, when hours are 
canceled or reduced; (ii) one (1) hour of predictability pay for all other changes. The 
compensation required by this subsection shall be in addition to the employee’s regular 
pay for working that shift.
(d)    Exceptions. The requirements of this section shall not apply under any of the 
following circumstances:

(1)    Operations cannot begin or continue due to threats to covered employers, 
employees or property, or when civil authorities recommend that work not begin 
or continue;
(2)    Operations cannot begin or continue because public utilities fail to supply 
electricity, water, or gas, or there is a failure in the public utilities or sewer 
system;
(3)    Operations cannot begin or continue due to: acts of nature (including but 
not limited to flood, fire, explosion, earthquake, tidal wave, drought), war, civil 
unrest, strikes, or other cause not within the covered employer’s control;
(4)    Mutually agreed-upon work shift swaps or coverage arrangements among 
employees.
(5)   Employee initiated voluntary shift modifications, such as voluntary requests 
to leave a scheduled shift prior to the end of the shift or to use sick leave, 
vacation leave, or other policies offered by the Employer.  This paragraph shall 
apply only to the employee initiating the voluntary shift modification.  
(6) To accommodate the following transitions in shifts:

(i) If an employee works past the end of a scheduled shift to complete 
service to a customer, which service would entitle the employee to receive 
a commission, tip, or other incentive pay based on the completion of that 
service, provided the employee is compensated at their regular rate of pay 
for the additional work performed by the employee.

Page 13 of 20

21



Page 7

(ii) An employee begins or ends their scheduled shift no more than ten 
minutes prior to or after the scheduled shift, provided the employee is 
compensated at their regular rate of pay for the additional work performed 
by the employee.

(7) When, in manufacturing, events outside of the control of the manufacturer 
result in a reduction in the need for Covered Employees, including, but not limited 
to, when a customer requests the manufacturer to delay production or there is a 
delay in the receipt of raw materials or component parts needed for production.
(8) With regard to healthcare employers, in (i) any declared national, State, or 
municipal disaster or other catastrophic event, or any implementation of an 
Employer's disaster plan, or incident causing a hospital to activate its Emergency 
Operations Plan, that will substantially affect or increase the need for healthcare 
services; (ii) any circumstance in which patient care needs require specialized 
skills through the completion of a procedure; or (iii) any unexpected substantial 
increase in demand for healthcare due to large public events, severe weather, 
violence, or other circumstances beyond the Employer's control.

(e)    Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit a covered employer from 
providing greater advance notice of employee’s work schedules and/or changes in 
schedules than that required by this section.
13.110.070 Offer of Work to Existing Employees.
(a)    Subject to the limitations herein, before hiring new employees or contract 
employees, including hiring through the use of temporary services or staffing agencies, 
a covered employer shall first offer additional hours of work to existing part-time 
employee(s) who have worked on behalf of the employer for more than two weeks, and 
if the part-time employee(s) are qualified to do the additional work, as reasonably and in 
good faith determined by the covered employer. This section requires covered 
employers to offer to part-time employees only up to the number of hours required to 
schedule a part-time employee forty (40) hours of work in a calendar week.  In order to 
facilitate communication with current employees who may be interested in additional 
work, an Employer may specify how employees may in advance communicate their 
interest of additional work and which positions and hours of work employees would be 
interested in covering. 
(b)    A covered employer has discretion to divide the additional work hours among part-
time employees consistent with this section; provided, that: (1) the employer’s system 
for distribution of hours must not discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, 
ancestry, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, 
disability, age, marital or familial status, nor on the basis of family caregiving 
responsibilities or status as a student; and (2) the employer may not distribute hours in 
a manner intended to avoid an increase in the number of employees working 30 or 

Page 14 of 20

22



Page 8

more hours per week, or with regard to the City of Berkeley, to avoid a the granting of 
any benefits that an employee earns based on hours worked.
(c)    A part-time employee may, but is not required to, accept the covered employer’s 
offer of additional work under this section.

(1)     A part-time employee shall have twenty-four (24) hours to accept an offer 
of additional hours of work under this section, after which time the covered 
employer may hire new employees to work the additional hours.
(2)    The twenty-four (24) hour period referred to in this subsection begins either 
when the employee receives the written offer of additional hours, or when the 
covered employer posts the offer of additional hours as described in subsection 
(d) of this section, whichever is sooner. A part-time employee who wishes to 
accept the additional hours must do so in writing.

(d)    When this section requires a covered employer to offer additional hours to existing 
part-time employees, the covered employer shall make the offer either in writing or by 
posting the offer in a conspicuous location in the workplace where notices to employees 
are customarily posted. Covered employers may post the notice electronically on an 
internal website in a conspicuous location and which website is readily accessible to all 
employees. The notice shall include the total hours of work being offered, the schedule 
of available shifts, whether those shifts will occur at the same time each week, and the 
length of time the covered employer anticipates requiring coverage of the additional 
hours, and the process by which part-time employees may notify the covered employer 
of their desire to work the offered hours.
(e)    The covered employer shall retain each written offer no less than three (3) years 
as required under Section 13.110.140.
(f)      This section shall not be construed to require any covered employer to offer 
employees work hours paid at a premium rate under California Labor Code Section 510 
nor to prohibit any covered employer from offering such work hours. 
13.110.080 Right to Rest.

(a)    An employee has the right to decline work hours that occur:
(1)    Less than eleven (11) hours after the end of the previous day’s shift; or
(2)    During the eleven (11) hours following the end of a shift that spanned two 
(2) days.

(b)    An employee who agrees in writing to work hours described in this section shall be 
compensated at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee’s regular rate of pay for 
any hours worked less than eleven (11) hours following the end of a previous shift.
13.110.090 Right to Request a Flexible Working Arrangement.

An employee has the right to request a modified work schedule, including but not limited 
to additional shifts or hours; changes in days of work or start and/or end times for the 

Page 15 of 20

23

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=510


Page 9

shift; permission to exchange shifts with other employees; limitations on availability; 
part-time employment; job sharing arrangements; reduction or change in work duties; or 
part-year employment. A covered employer shall not retaliate against an employee for 
exercising their rights under this section or the rights outlined in the Berkeley Family 
Friendly and Environment Friendly Workplace Ordinance, Berkeley Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.101.

13.110.100 Notice and Posting.
(a)    The Department shall publish and make available to covered employers, in English 
and other languages as provided in any implementing regulations, a notice suitable for 
posting by covered employers in the workplace informing employees of their rights 
under this chapter.
(b)    Each covered employer shall give written notification to each current employee 
and to each new employee at time of hire of their rights under this chapter. The 
notification shall be in English and other languages as provided in any implementing 
regulations, and shall also be posted prominently in areas at the work site where it will 
be seen by all employees. Every covered employer shall also provide each employee at 
the time of hire with the covered employer’s name, address, and telephone number in 
writing. Failure to post such notice shall render the covered employer subject to 
administrative citation, pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. The Department is 
authorized to prepare sample notices and covered employer use of such notices shall 
constitute compliance with this subsection.
13.110.110 Implementation.
(a)     The Department shall be authorized to coordinate implementation and 
enforcement of this chapter and may promulgate appropriate guidelines or rules for 
such purposes.  Any guidelines or rules promulgated by the City shall have the force 
and effect of law and may be relied on by covered employers, employees and other 
parties to determine their rights and responsibilities under this chapter. Any guidelines 
or rules may establish procedures for ensuring fair, efficient and cost-effective 
implementation of this chapter, including supplementary procedures for helping to 
inform employees of their rights under this chapter, for monitoring covered employer 
compliance with this chapter, and for providing administrative hearings to determine 
whether a covered employer has violated the requirements of this chapter.
(b)    Reporting Violations. An aggrieved employee may report to the Department in 
writing any suspected violation of this chapter. The Department shall keep confidential, 
to the maximum extent permitted by applicable laws, the name and other identifying 
information of the employee reporting the violation; provided, however, that with the 
authorization of such employee, the Department may disclose their name and 
identifying information as necessary to enforce this chapter or other employee 
protection laws.

Page 16 of 20

24



Page 10

(c)    Investigation. The Department may investigate any possible violations of this 
chapter by a covered employer. The Department shall have the authority to inspect 
workplaces, interview persons and subpoena records or other items relevant to the 
enforcement of this chapter.
(d)    Informal Resolution. If the Department elects to investigate a complaint, the City 
shall make every effort to resolve complaints informally and in a timely manner. The 
City’s investigation and pursuit of informal resolution does not limit or act as a 
prerequisite for an employee’s right to bring a private action against a covered employer 
as provided in this chapter. 
13.110.120 Enforcement.

(a)    Enforcement by City. Where prompt compliance with the provisions of this chapter 
is not forthcoming, the Department may take any appropriate enforcement action to 
ensure compliance, including but not limited to the following:
The Department may issue an administrative citation pursuant to Chapter 1.28 of the 
Berkeley Municipal Code. The amount of this fine shall vary based on the provision of 
this chapter violated, as specified below:

(1)    A fine may be assessed for retaliation by a covered employer against an 
employee for exercising rights protected under this chapter. The fine shall be one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for each employee retaliated against.
(2)    A fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00) may be assessed for any of the 
following violations of this chapter:

(i)    Failure to provide notice of employees’ rights under this chapter.
(ii)    Failure to timely provide an initial work schedule or to timely update 
work schedules following changes.
(iii)    Failure to provide predictability pay for schedule changes with less 
than twenty-four (24) hours’ advance notice.
(iv)    Failure to offer work to existing employees before hiring new 
employees or temporary staff or to award work to a qualified employee.
(v)    Failure to maintain payroll records for the minimum period of time as 
provided in this chapter.
(vi)    Failure to allow the Department access to payroll records.

(3)    A fine equal to the total amount of appropriate remedies, pursuant to 
subsection (c) of this section. Any and all money collected in this way that is the 
rightful property of an employee, such as back wages, interest, and civil penalty 
payments, shall be disbursed by the Department in a prompt manner.

 (f)    City Access. Each covered employer shall permit access to work sites and 
relevant records for authorized City representatives for the purpose of monitoring 
compliance with this chapter and investigating employee complaints of noncompliance, 

Page 17 of 20

25



Page 11

including production for inspection and copying of its employment records, but without 
allowing Social Security numbers to become a matter of public record.
(g)  Any person aggrieved by a violation of this Chapter, any entity a member of which is 
aggrieved by a violation of this Chapter, or any other person or entity acting on behalf of 
the public as provided for under applicable state law, may bring a civil action in a court 
of competent jurisdiction against the Employer or other person violating this Chapter 
and, upon prevailing, shall be awarded reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs and shall 
be entitled to such legal or equitable relief as may be appropriate to remedy the 
violation including, without limitation, the payment of any back wages unlawfully 
withheld, the payment of an additional sum as a civil penalty in the amount of $50 to 
each Employee or person whose rights under this Chapter were violated for each day 
that the violation occurred or continued, reinstatement in employment and/or injunctive 
relief. Provided, however, that any person or entity enforcing this Chapter on behalf of 
the public as provided for under applicable state law shall, upon prevailing, be entitled 
only to equitable, injunctive or restitutionary relief to Employees, and reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs. 

(i) This Section shall not be construed to limit an Employee’s right to bring legal action 
for a violation of any other laws concerning wages, hours, or other standards or rights 
nor shall exhaustion of remedies under this Chapter be a prerequisite to the assertion of 
any right. 

(j) The remedies for violation of this chapter include but are not limited to:
1. Reinstatement, the payment of predictability pay unlawfully withheld, and the 
payment of an additional sum as a civil penalty in the amount of fifty dollars 
($50.00) to each employee whose rights under this chapter were violated for each 
day or portion thereof that the violation occurred or continued, and fines imposed 
pursuant to other provisions of this chapter or State law.
2. Interest on all due and unpaid wages at the rate of interest specified in 
subdivision (b) of Section 3289 of the California Civil Code, which shall accrue 
from the date that the wages were due and payable as provided in Part 1 
(commencing with Section 200) of Division 2 of the California Labor Code, to the 
date the wages are paid in full.
3. Reimbursement of the City’s administrative costs of enforcement and 
reasonable attorney’s fees.

4. If a repeated violation of this chapter has been finally determined in a period from 
July 1 to June 30 of the following year, the Department may require the employer to pay 
an additional sum as a civil penalty in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00) to the City for 
each employee or person whose rights under this chapter were violated for each day or 
portion thereof that the violation occurred or continued, and fines imposed pursuant to 
other provisions of this Code or State law.

Page 18 of 20

26

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CIV&sectionNum=3289
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=200


Page 12

(k) The remedies, penalties and procedures provided under this chapter are cumulative 
and are not intended to be exclusive of any other available remedies, penalties and 
procedures established by law which may be pursued to address violations of this 
chapter. Actions taken pursuant to this chapter shall not prejudice or adversely affect 
any other action, administrative or judicial, that may be brought to abate a violation or to 
seek compensation for damages suffered.
(l) No criminal penalties shall attach for any violation of this chapter, nor shall this 
chapter give rise to any cause of action for damages against the City.

13.110.130 Retaliation Prohibited. 

An employer shall not discharge, reduce the compensation of, discriminate against, or 
take any adverse employment action against an employee, including discipline, 
suspension, transfer or assignment to a lesser position in terms of job classification, job 
security, or other condition of employment, reduction of hours or denial of additional 
hours, informing another employer that the person has engaged in activities protected 
by this chapter, or reporting or threatening to report the actual or suspected citizenship 
or immigration status of an employee, former employee or family member of an 
employee to a Federal, State or local agency, for making a complaint to the 
Department, participating in any of the Department’s proceedings, using any civil 
remedies to enforce their rights, or otherwise asserting their rights under this chapter. 
Within one hundred twenty (120) days of an employer being notified of such activity, it 
shall be unlawful for the employer to discharge any employee who engaged in such 
activity unless the employer has clear and convincing evidence of just cause for such 
discharge.
13.110.140 Retention of Records.

Each employer shall maintain for at least three (3) years for each employee a record of 
their name, hours worked, pay rate, initial posted schedule and all subsequent changes 
to that schedule, consent to work hours where such consent is required by this chapter, 
and documentation of the time and method of offering additional hours of work to 
existing staff. Each employer shall provide each employee a copy of the records relating 
to such employee upon the employee’s reasonable request.
13.110.150 City Access.

Each employer shall permit access to work sites and relevant records for authorized 
Department representatives for the purpose of monitoring compliance with this chapter 
and investigating employee complaints of noncompliance, including production for 
inspection and copying of its employment records, but without allowing Social Security 
numbers to become a matter of public record.

Page 19 of 20

27



Page 13

13.110.160 No Preemption of Higher Standards.

The purpose of this chapter is to ensure minimum labor standards. This chapter does 
not preempt or prevent the establishment of superior employment standards (including 
higher wages) or the expansion of coverage by ordinance, resolution, contract, or any 
other action of the City. This chapter shall not be construed to limit a discharged 
employee’s right to bring a common law cause of action for wrongful termination. 
13.110.170 Severability.

If any part or provision of this Chapter, or the application of this Chapter to any person 
or circumstance, is held invalid, the remainder of this Chapter, including the application 
of such part or provision to other persons or circumstances, shall not be affected by 
such a holding and shall continue in full force and effect. To this end, the provisions of 
this Chapter are severable.

Section 2. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall 
be filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in 
a newspaper of general circulation.

Page 20 of 20

28



  

Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

ACTION CALENDAR
April 12, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing, and Community Services

Subject: Companion Report: Fair Workweek Ordinance; Adding Berkeley Municipal 
Code Chapter 13.110

RECOMMENDATION
Direct this item to the Health, Life Enrichment, Equity, and Community Policy 
Committee for the following: 

 Review and evaluate the proposed policy; and 

 Evaluate resources needed to conduct the necessary analysis of impacts and 
costs associated with implementing the proposed policy.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
The costs of implementing the proposed Fair Workweek policy are currently unknown 
but are expected to be significant. If implemented correctly, and with an equitable 
approach, this important policy is expected to positively impact many low-income 
workers in Berkeley. The City currently does not have a full understanding of the 
impacted businesses, employees, and how to implement this policy for the unique 
needs of the Berkeley community. 

A comprehensive impact analysis of this proposed policy is required to fully determine 
the upfront and future costs and ongoing staffing needs associated with effectively 
administering and enforcing the ordinance. Impacted City departments will include 
Health, Housing, and Community Services, Finance, Neighborhood Services, the City 
Attorney’s Office, and the Office of Economic Development. Resources are also needed 
to conduct a comprehensive impact analysis. 

The cost of ongoing implementation and administration of a Fair Workweek policy 
depends on many factors including, but not limited to: 

 The final determination and consideration for which industry sectors shall be 
covered; 

 The size of employers (based on the number of global and local employees); 

Page 1 of 4

29

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager
arichardson
Typewritten Text
 02b



  
Fair Workweek ACTION CALENDAR

April 12, 2022

 The total number of employers covered by the policy; 

 The success of proactive efforts to educate affected employers; and

 A clear expectation of the level of technical assistance provided by City staff to 
employers and employees covered under the policy.

These factors will inform the breadth of the policy’s impact on City employers (how 
many total employers will be covered) and are necessary to determine how much staff 
time will be needed to effectively setup and administer the program. 

Neighboring jurisdictions that have passed similar policies, including San Francisco and 
Emeryville, have dedicated additional funds for outreach and education to impacted 
employers. For the policy to be successful, these proactive efforts are essential in that 
they aim to reduce the number of enforcement complaints by proactively working with 
affected employers to build business practices that conform to the noticing and 
documentation standards required by the ordinance. 

Further, significant staff time will be required to accurately identify which employers 
would be covered by this policy. This is anticipated to be a time-intensive process due 
to the complexity of screening local employers against the applicable criteria used to 
determine employer eligibility. It is also expected that the Finance Department would 
need to make substantial changes to the business license application to help properly 
identify businesses subject to the regulations; including information about an employer’s 
status as a franchise, their total employee counts worldwide, and employee counts 
within Berkeley.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Adding a Fair Workweek policy to Berkeley’s labor standards is an important 
consideration for the community. This policy has been contemplated for many years by 
Council, the Commission on Labor, and the City’s labor standards staff. Many thoughtful 
hours of work have already gone into drafting the proposed ordinance.  Experts on the 
commission took public comment multiple times and discussed at length the potential 
impacts to local employers, given the ongoing financial, staffing, and operational 
struggles some businesses have faced throughout the pandemic. With that in mind, the 
commission moved this policy forward in consideration of the urgent need for equitable 
and fair treatment of Berkeley workers, and in support of the essential service workers 
who have gotten us through the pandemic, many of whom are lower-income and 
persons of color. 

City staff have a similar approach. If adopted, the City first needs to better understand 
the probable impacts to the business community, employees, and City staff. This 
includes understanding what is really needed in order to effectively and equitably 
implement an important and wide-reaching policy such as this. The current economic 
circumstances also warrant especially careful analysis of the impacts to local employers 

Page 2 of 4

30



  
Fair Workweek ACTION CALENDAR

April 12, 2022

as they continue to face ongoing challenges related to the pandemic, including 
compounding supply chain and inflation issues. 

Additionally, adding this policy to the current labor standards and enforcement portfolio 
will require additional staff resources for initial outreach and education as well as 
ongoing administration and enforcement. However, even prior that, in order to fully 
understand the staffing needs and cost associated with administering and enforcing this 
policy, a comprehensive impact analysis of this proposed policy is required to fully 
determine the upfront and future costs and ongoing staffing needs associated with 
effectively administering and enforcing the ordinance. This approach aims to ensure the 
policy is implemented in the best way for Berkeley, its businesses, and local low-income 
workers. 

The current portfolio of local labor standards and enforcement policies in Berkeley 
includes: 1) The Minimum Wage Ordinance, 2) The Living Wage Ordinance, 3) The 
Berkeley Paid Sick Leave Ordinance, and 4) The Berkeley Family Friendly and 
Environment Friendly Workplace Ordinance. The work to administer these policies, 
including providing general information as well as conducting formal investigations and 
enforcement of the policies is considerable. Adding the Fair Workweek Policy to this 
portfolio significantly expands this body of work and should be considered alongside a 
cost analysis.  

It should be noted that Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.110 is currently dedicated 
to the COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance.  If the Fair Workweek Ordinance is 
to proceed to a first reading, it would need a different Chapter number in Title 13. If 
adopted as-is, the Fair Workweek Ordinance would supersede the existing Chapter 
13.110 and replace the existing language regarding COVID-19 Response.

BACKGROUND
In 2018, the City Council referred this item to the Commission on Labor and directed 
them to “draft an Ordinance to establish regulations governing the scheduling and hiring 
practices of qualifying businesses in Berkeley…”  The referral included a copy of the 
Emeryville Fair Workweek Ordinance as a template for consideration. 

The Commission appointed a subcommittee to work on the draft ordinance and held 
several public meetings which were attended by dozens of participants from the public, 
representing both workers and employers with interest in the policy. The Subcommittee 
ultimately presented a draft policy that took elements from both the City of Emeryville 
Fair Workweek Ordinance and the Fair Workweek Ordinance from the City of Chicago 
that covered more business industries than the Emeryville Ordinance does. 

At the November 17, 2021 Commission on Labor Meeting, The Commission approved a 
motion to recommend the draft policy to the City Council with the motion and vote 
below: 

Page 3 of 4

31



  
Fair Workweek ACTION CALENDAR

April 12, 2022

Recommend approval of draft Fair Workweek Ordinance to the Berkeley City 
Council. 

(M/S/C: Scantlebury/Katz. Yes: Botello, Harlow, Osborne, Jones. Noes: Schriner, 
Berne. Abstentions: None. Absent: Medak).  

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
None. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Staff is recommending that the Council direct the draft Fair Workweek Ordinance to the 
Health, Life Enrichment, Equity, and Community Policy Committee to evaluate the 
Commission’s recommendations and also evaluate the availability of existing resources 
to conduct a more thorough analysis of the policy’s impacts.  

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The Council could adopt the ordinance now as written, but without an evaluation of the 
resources needed to enforce the ordinance and commitment of those resources, the 
ordinance is unlikely to achieve the desired impact.  Outreach, education and consistent 
responses will be key to achieving the goal of a fair workweek for Berkeley workers. 

CONTACT PERSON
Margot Ernst, Manager of Housing and Community Services, HHCS, (510) 981-7410

Page 4 of 4

32


	2022-05-09 Agenda - Health
	2022-05-09 Item 01 Minutes
	2022-05-09 Item 02a Fair Workweek Ordinance
	2022-05-09 Item 02b Companion Report  Fair Workweek Ordinance



